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SUMMARY OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE’S INQUIRY TO DATE

On March 19, 2024, the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations (“the Subcommittee™)
opened an inquiry into The Boeing Company’s (“Boeing” or “the company”) quality and safety
practices. The Subcommittee requested from Boeing information and records about the company’s
safety culture and practices, including its whistleblower policies, and whistleblower Sam
Salehpour’s allegations that Boeing was taking shortcuts in the process of manufacturing 787 and
777 aircraft that increased safety risks.! The Subcommittee also sent a letter to Federal Aviation
Administration (“FAA”) Administrator Michael Whitaker seeking additional information about
the agency’s oversight of Boeing and its investigation of Mr. Salehpour’s allegations.? Although
the Subcommittee’s investigation is ongoing, this memorandum presents new information based
on documents obtained from Boeing and whistleblowers.

Since opening the inquiry, the Subcommittee has received outreach from additional
whistleblowers in the aviation industry, including individuals with firsthand knowledge of
Boeing’s operations and policies, who have come forward with new information about additional
safety risks stemming from Boeing’s manufacturing practices. Specifically, these whistleblowers
have provided information about Boeing’s ongoing mismanagement of honconforming parts and
its removal of quality inspections. Some whistleblowers who have come forward to the
Subcommittee wish to remain anonymous, but others have either spoken out publicly or are willing
to have their stories be public for the first time.

Documents and accounts provided by whistleblowers familiar with Boeing’s production at
facilities in Washington state and Charleston, South Carolina, paint a troubling picture of a
company that prioritizes speed of manufacturing and cutting costs over ensuring the quality and
safety of aircraft. These misplaced priorities appear to contribute to a safety culture that
insufficiently values and addresses the root causes of employee concerns and insufficiently deters
retaliation against employees that speak up.

! Letter from Sens. Richard Blumenthal and Ron Johnson, Perm. Subcomm. on Investigations, to David Calhoun,
CEO, Boeing (Mar. 19, 2024), https://www.hsgac.senate.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024.3.19-PSI-Letter-to-Boeing-
CEO-David-Calhoun.pdf.

2 Letter from Sens. Richard Blumenthal and Ron Johnson, Perm. Subcomm. on Investigations, to Michael Whitaker,
Adm’r, Fed. Aviation Admin. (Mar. 19, 2024), https://www.hsgac.senate.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024.3.19-PSI-
Letter-to-FAA-Administrator-Michael-Whitaker.pdf.



ALARMING MISMANAGEMENT OF NONCONFORMING PARTS

Whistleblower reports spanning more than a decade raise questions about Boeing’s ability
to timely source and track aircraft parts and ensure that damaged or inadequate parts
(“nonconforming parts”) are not used in aircraft production. The tracking and disposition of
aircraft parts that do not conform to their quality or design specifications is heavily regulated, and
criminal penalties apply to knowing or intentional falsification, concealment, or materially
fraudulent misrepresentation in connection with records documenting the disposition of aircraft
parts.® Aircraft manufacturers are required to maintain a written quality system that includes
“[p]rocedures to ensure that only products or articles that conform to their approved design are
installed on a type-certificated product. These procedures must provide for the identification,
documentation, evaluation, segregation, and disposition of nonconforming products and articles.
Only authorized individuals may make disposition determinations.”* Aircraft manufacturer quality
systems must also prescribe “[p]rocedures to ensure that discarded articles are rendered
unusable.”® At Boeing, when parts are deemed “nonconforming,” they are marked with a red tag
or red paint and stored in a secure area of the factory called the Material Review Segregation Area
(“MRSA”).5

a. “The 737 program was losing hundreds of non-conforming parts”—Whistleblower
Sam Mohawk’s Allegations of Nonconforming Parts Mismanagement in Renton,
Washington

In May 2024, Sam Mohawk, a current Boeing Quality Assurance investigator at the MRSA
in Renton, Washington, informed the Subcommittee that he has witnessed systemic disregard for
documentation and accountability of nonconforming parts at Boeing’s Renton facility, where the
737 MAX is manufactured.” On June 11, 2024, Mr. Mohawk filed a claim with the Occupational
Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”), which is attached as Attachment 1. This complaint
has not been previously released publicly.

Mr. Mohawk’s current role at MRSA includes handling nonconforming parts, work that he
alleges became significantly more complex and demanding following the resumption of 737 MAX
production when the FAA authorized the aircraft to return to service following two crashes in 2018
and 2019.8 Mr. Mohawk alleges that “[cJompared to pre-grounding, MRSA was experiencing a
300% increase [of nonconformance reports]” and that “the 737 program was losing hundreds of
non-conforming parts.”®

Mohawk feared that non-conforming parts were being installed on the 737s and
that it could lead to a catastrophic event.°

3See 14 C.F.R. § 21.137; 18 U.S.C. § 38.

414 CFR 21.137(h)(1).

°14 CFR 21.137(h)(2).

6 See Complaint (AIR2-21), Mohawk v. Boeing Co., 2 (U.S. Dep’t of Lab. Occupational Safety and Health Admin.,
June 11, 2024), Attachment 1.

" Id. at 2-12, Attachment 1.

8 Id. at 5, Attachment 1.

9Id. at 6, Attachment 1.

10 7d. at 6, Attachment 1.



Mr. Mohawk alleges that the Renton Factory’s inability to adequately manage
nonconforming parts led to the company “intentionally hid[ing] improperly stored parts from the
FAA” during one on-site inspection.

In June 2023, the FAA notified Boeing’s Renton plant that it would be conducting
an inspection. Once Boeing received such a notice, it ordered the majority of the
parts that were being stored outside to be moved to another location to
intentionally hide improperly stored parts from the FAA. There were
approximately 60 parts being stored outdoors, including 42 rudders alone, plus
flaps, winglets, ailerons, stabilizers, and vertical fins. Approximately 80% of the
parts were moved to avoid the watchful eyes of the FAA inspectors. When the FAA
inspectors saw the remaining parts stored outside, they required Boeing to expand
its storage capacity and add more workers in MRSA. Since then, those parts that
were hidden from the FAA inspection have been moved back to the outside area or
lost completely.?

Mr. Mohawk alleges that the overwhelming number of nonconforming parts eventually led
his superiors to direct him and others to eliminate or “cancel” the records that designate a part as
nonconforming; these records are referred to as a nonconformance report (“NCR”).*3 During an
August 2023 meeting, the head of Boeing‘s Material Review Board for the 737 MAX program
“reiterated his order for everyone to cancel and delete NCRs, and not to keep a written record of
non-conforming parts,” an order that violated Boeing’s own policies and federal regulations.'*
Concerned about the implications of this order, Mr. Mohawk filed a Speak Up report, which is a
report on Boeing’s internal system for receiving employee safety-related concerns.'® After months
during which no apparent action was taken, Mr. Mohawk alleges that his report was directed to
the same group of managers that he complained about in his report.®

b. “These are $41,000.00 EA and takes 18 months to get replacements”—
Whistleblower Merle Meyers’ Allegations of Nonconforming Parts
Mismanagement in Everett, Washington

On April 24, 2024, former Boeing quality manager Merle Meyers alleged that he witnessed
extensive mismanagement of nonconforming parts during his years of employment at Boeing’s
factory in Everett, Washington.!” Mr. Meyers left Boeing in 2023 after a 30-year career at the
company.'® As reported by The New York Times, Mr. Meyers “was particularly troubled that
workers at Boeing’s Everett factory felt such pressure to keep production moving that they would

1 1d. at 6-7, Attachment 1.

12 1d. at 67, Attachment 1.

13 7d. at 7, Attachment 1.

14 1d. at 7, Attachment 1.

15 1d. at 8-9, Attachment 1.

16 74 at 9, Attachment 1.

17 Niraj Chokshi, Former Boeing Manager Says Workers Mishandled Parts to Meet Deadlines, N.Y. TIMES (April
24, 2024), https://www.nytimes.com/2024/04/24/business/boeing-airlines-plane-issues.html.
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find unauthorized ways to get the parts they needed.”'® According to Mr. Meyers, this included
“taking parts assigned to other planes, taking newly delivered components before they could be
inspected or logged, or trying to recover parts that had been scrapped.”? When he shared his story
with the Subcommittee, Mr. Meyers alleged that Boeing manufacturing personnel regularly sought
to retrieve nonconforming parts from a “reclamation” area, after they were initially sent there for
disposition.?

Mr. Meyers provided information to the Subcommittee which has not previously been
made public, including allegations that the pressure on manufacturing personnel to obtain parts
from the reclamation area was so prevalent that reclamation area personnel “collaborated to
generate a bootleg form to at least track who signed for what part numbers.”?? According to Mr.
Meyers, reclamation area personnel titled the form “REQUIREMENTS FOR RELEASING
PARTS/RAW MATERIAL FROM RECLAMATION.”? Mr. Meyers relayed that the “bootleg
form” circumvents a “robust, documented process . . . for removing scrapped parts from
reclamation.”® A completed example of this form is attached as Attachment 2, which has not
previously been publicly released. That form and several other examples provided by Mr. Meyers
to the Subcommittee include responses that appear to justify the removal of parts from reclamation
with the explanation: “Parts were sent [to reclamation] in error,” which Mr. Meyers alleged was a
common pretext used by manufacturing personnel to move parts back into aircraft production.?
The example forms reviewed by the Subcommittee, some dating as far back as 2002, appeared to
relate to a variety of small and large aircraft parts, including “787 leading edge slats”, “landing
gear fitting”, “787 nacelle forgings”, and “wire bundles.”?® The form provided as Attachment 2
also appears to cite the individual cost and time required to obtain a new, identical replacement as
justification for removing the part from reclamation: “Parts were sent in error. ENG has a possible
rework plan. These are $41.000.00 EA and takes [sic] 18 months to get replacements.”?’

c. “It was just totally out of control”—Wahistleblower John Barnett’s Allegations of
Nonconforming Parts Mismanagement in Charleston, South Carolina

Whistleblower John Barnett worked at Boeing for over 30 years, including seven years as
a quality manager in Charleston, South Carolina, where the 787 is assembled.?® Prior to his
departure from the company in 2017, Mr. Barnett was responsible for the disposition of

¥rd

0 1d.

21 Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Mr. Merle Meyers, June 7, 2024 (on file with the Subcommittee).

2 1d.

23 Summary Compilation provided to Subcommittee staff by Mr. Merle Meyers (on file with the Subcommittee).
2 1d.

% See e.g., Requirements for Releasing Parts/Raw Material from Reclamation Example Form (June 3, 2015),
Attachment 2; Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Mr. Merle Meyers, June 7, 2024 (on file with the
Subcommittee).

2% Requirements for Releasing Parts/Raw Material from Reclamation Example Forms (on file with the
Subcommittee).

27 Requirements for Releasing Parts/Raw Material from Reclamation Example Form (June 3, 2015), Attachment 2.
28 First Amended Complaint, Barnett v. Boeing Co., 2021-AIR-00007, 2 (U.S. Dep’t of Lab. May 4, 2021),
https://www.scribd.com/document/715444070/Barnett-First-Amended-Complaint-5-4-21-Redacted.
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nonconforming parts placed in the MRSA at the South Carolina facility between 2015 and 2017.%
In 2017, Mr. Barnett filed a whistleblower retaliation complaint against Boeing that is still in
litigation today.>® Attachments 3 and 4 are the non-public transcripts of Mr. Barnett’s March 7 and
8, 2024, deposition conducted as part of his retaliation proceedings.®! Mr. Barnett died by suicide
the morning of what was scheduled to be the third day of his deposition.®2

Among Mr. Barnett’s allegations, he suspected that Boeing’s overriding priority to
assemble and deliver aircraft as fast as possible pressured production employees to use
nonconforming parts on aircraft in production, which violates FAA regulations and Boeing’s own
policies.®® According to Mr. Barnett, “the environment at Charleston was, it’s all about
production. And, Don’t want to hold them up. . . . I was told several times I’m not allowed to
tell manufacturing no, that it’s their responsibility to follow procedures.”3*

We don’t have time to follow processes; we’re building airplanes. . . . that was a
common theme all the time.*®

Nonconforming parts that are not accurately tracked and secured (sometimes considered
“lost”) pose a risk to aircraft quality because they could be installed on aircraft in production,
potentially resulting in failure of the nonconforming component.® In his deposition, Mr. Barnett
alleged that his superiors at the South Carolina factory directed him to falsify records that would
resolve the disposition of lost nonconforming parts in the company’s Quality Management System,
where parts are tracked.®” When Mr. Barnett refused, insisting that the parts either had to be found,
or their missing status reported to the FAA, he allegedly was told, “Absolutely not. We are not
reporting anything to the FAA.”%®

We actually found scrap parts out there [on the production line]. And the way |
know they 're scrap parts is because our processes say, before you scrap a part, you
paint it red. And we found numerous parts out in production that were painted
red, that had come out of the scrap bin.3

Mr. Barnett alleged that he followed Boeing’s procedures for securing nonconforming
parts in the MRSA to ensure those parts would not end up installed on aircraft in production.*

29 See Barnett Dep. Vol. 1, Barnett v. Boeing Co., 2021-AIR-00007, 4748, 218 (U.S. Dep’t of Lab. Mar. 7, 2024),
Attachment 3 [hereinafter “Barnett Dep. Vol. 17].

%0 First Amended Complaint, Barnett v. Boeing Co., 2021-AIR-00007 (U.S. Dep’t of Lab. May 4, 2021),
https://www.scribd.com/document/715444070/Barnett-First-Amended-Complaint-5-4-21-Redacted.

31 Barnett Dep. Vol. 1; Barnett Dep. Vol. 2, Barnett v. Boeing Co., 2021-AIR-00007 (U.S. Dep’t of Lab. Mar. 8,
2024), Attachment 4 [hereinafter “Barnett Dep. Vol. 2”].

32 Sara Smart, Boeing Whistleblower Died by Suicide, Police Investigation Reveals, CNN (May 17, 2024, 9:36 PM),
https://www.cnn.com/2024/05/17/business/boeing-whistleblower-suicide-police-investigation/index.html.

33 See Barnett Dep. Vol. 2 22-24, 57-60, Attachment 4.

34 Id. at 33, Attachment 4.

3 Id. at 37, Attachment 4.

3 Jd. at 13, Attachment 4.

87 Id. at 10—13, Attachment 4.

3 Jd. at 11, Attachment 4.

3 Id. at 17-18, Attachment 4.

40 Jd. at 14—17, Attachment 4.



According to Mr. Barnett, those procedures included limiting access to the MRSA to authorized
personnel, which did not include manufacturing personnel.** Mr. Barnett alleged that, despite his
objections, keys to the MRSA area were issued to manufacturing personnel.*?

Manufacturing lead had keys [to the MRSA]. And they were just able to walk in,
unlock the cage, and take any part they wanted. . . . And immediately after those
keys were issued our, we noticed lost nonconforming parts were disappearing
again. We found parts pulled out of our scrap bin that [were] out on the production
floor being used. We had nonconforming parts out on the floors being used. It
was just totally out of control.*

Mr. Barnett alleged that when he spoke up about violations of Boeing procedures with
superiors, his concerns were never fully addressed and that he experienced retaliation and pressure
to “find . . . ways to work in the grey areas to help manufacturing out.”**

So they would tell you that verbally. Oh, yeah, speak up. Raise your hand. We take
it seriously. But then, when you actually do it is when you start getting actions
that, you know, you’re a troublemaker or you’re . . . just trying to hold up
production.®

In 2017, the FAA substantiated at least part of Mr. Barnett’s allegations.*® In addition to
filing a retaliation complaint with OSHA, Mr. Barnett submitted a safety complaint to the FAA on
January 19, 2017.4" The FAA investigated Mr. Barnett’s allegations by conducting interviews with
MRSA personnel and reviewing Boeing’s quality procedures and nonconforming parts records.*®

An FAA review of the [Boeing South Carolina] investigation showed 45
nonconforming part records have been researched so far and [Boeing South
Carolina] has identified 53 nonconforming parts that are considered lost. The
[Boeing South Carolina] investigation is still in progress and 176 nonconforming
part records need to be researched. The FAA concluded, after review of the
[Boeing South Carolina] investigation documentation/records and [Boeing
Commercial Aircraft] nonconforming part processes, that [Boeing South
Carolina] personnel did not follow approved quality system processes to track and
disposition nonconforming parts. As a result, 53 nonconforming parts are known
to have been lost.*°

41 Id. at 14—17, Attachment 4.

42 Id. at 17, Attachment 4.

43 Id. at 16-17, Attachment 4.

4 Id. at 46, Attachment 4.

4 Id. at 79-80, Attachment 4.

46 Memorandum from Dir., Aircraft Certification Serv., AIR-1, Fed. Aviation Admin., to Manager, Audit and
Analysis Branch, AAE-100, Fed. Aviation Admin., Whistleblower Complaint EWB17544, The Boeing Company --
Boeing South Carolina (Mar. 21, 2017), Attachment 5.

47 Id. at 2, Attachment 5.

8 Id. at 2, Attachment 5.

4 Id. at 3, Attachment 5.



REMOVAL OF QUALITY INSPECTIONS
a. Importance of Quality Inspections to Airplane Safety

Quiality inspections are legally mandated and critical to the safe manufacturing and
performance of airplanes.®® FAA regulations require aircraft manufacturers to maintain a quality
management system “that ensures that each product and article conforms to its approved design
and is in a condition for safe operation.”®* Among other requirements, that system must include
“[p]rocedures for inspections and tests” and “[p]rocedures for documenting the inspection and test
status . . . .”% Importantly, after manufacturers establish and secure FAA approval for those
procedures, manufacturers are required to “[m]aintain the quality system in compliance with”
those established procedures.>® Those procedures usually involve employees on quality teams
working as a “second set of eyes” to perform inspections and, ultimately, formally sign-off on
work once they are comfortable that the aircraft is in conformance (called “acceptance”).>* Because
each airplane produced must conform to the FAA-approved design, quality inspections are crucial
to mitigating the risk that manufacturers sell airplanes that vary from the approved design in
potentially unsafe ways.>®

According to a series of FAA enforcement letters from 2016 to 2021, public reporting, and
whistleblower allegations, Boeing engaged in a repeated, years-long effort to eliminate quality
inspections and instead relied on the workers building the planes to inspect their own work.%®
Despite efforts to both comply with the FAA directive to restore the removed inspections and even
add more in the wake of the January Alaska Airlines incident, as recently as May 2024, the FAA
opened a new investigation into Boeing for potentially failing to complete required inspections on
the 787 while falsely recording those inspections as being completed.®’

%0 See 14 C.F.R. § 21.137; see generally Quality and Safety Management, FED. AVIATION ADMIN. (November 17,
2021) https://www.faa.gov/about/initiatives/sms/explained/quality _and safety management.

5114 C.FR. § 21.137.

%214 C.FR. § 21.137(a), (g).

%14 C.FR. § 21.146(b).

%4 Dominic Gates, Boeing Overhauls Quality Controls: More High-Tech Tracking but Fewer Inspectors, SEATTLE
TIMES (Jan. 20, 2019, 5:01 PM), https://www.seattletimes.com/business/boeing-aerospace/boeing-overhauls-its-
quality-controls-more-high-tech-tracking-but-fewer-inspectors/.

% See generally Quality and Safety Management, FED. AVIATION ADMIN. (November 17, 2021)
https://www.faa.gov/about/initiatives/sms/explained/quality and safety management.

% See Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on file with the
Subcommittee).

57 BOEING, PRODUCT SAFETY AND QUALITY PLAN: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 2 (May 30, 2024),
https://www.boeing.com/content/dam/boeing/boeingdotcom/safety/Safety-and-Quality-
Plan_Executive%20Summary-5-30-2024.pdf; Russell Lewis, FAA Is Investigating Boeing for Apparent Missed
Inspections on 787 Dreamliner, NAT’L PUB. RADIO (May 6, 2024, 4:46 PM),
https://www.npr.org/2024/05/06/1249432229/faa-investigation-boeing-787-dreamliner.
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b. “[N]ot acceptable”—FAA’s Efforts to Rein in Boeing’s Iterated, Multi-year Effort to
Remove Quality Inspections

Boeing’s efforts to remove inspections spanned several years and included various
strategies for removing inspections.®® As early as 2016, the FAA sent Boeing a formal compliance
action request following an FAA audit that alleged that a Boeing policy adopted in 2015
“create[ed] a process that bypasse[d] the Quality organization and allow[ed] . . . Manufacturing
Technician[s] to accept” certain tests of airplanes’ functionality without holding the requisite
authority to do s0.%° In response, Boeing blamed that problem on “unclear” language in their policy
documents “causing confusion” within the quality team, and promised to update their documents
and training to “clearly define the role of Quality in accepting” the relevant tests.®

In November 2017, the FAA sent Boeing three letters raising similar concerns about quality
inspections.®! A letter dated November 8, 2017 (“November 8 letter”) alleged that two new Boeing
policies (one of which was adopted just four months after Boeing had pledged to address the
inspection problems the FAA identified in 2016) appeared to “modify and/or circumvent” the
requirement that planes be properly inspected and tested in part by replacing quality inspections—
which involve direct, physical examinations of planes—with “verifications”—which instead
involve “[i]ndirectly demonstrating” compliance “by the use of data and analytical tools.”®? The
November 8 letter again raised concern about allowing employees without the required training
(and thus without the appropriate authority) to perform product acceptance.®® The FAA put it
clearly:

Grant[ing] acceptance responsibility without appropriate training is
unacceptable to the Quality requirements. . . . [R]emoving inspections and
replacing them with verifications . . . is not acceptable and does not meet the
minimum requirements of [FAA regulations].®*

%8 See Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on file with the
Subcommittee).

%9 Letter from Senior Manager, Boeing Com. Airplanes, to Aircraft Certification Serv., Fed. Aviation Admin., 6-
1031-RQSO-KGP16-279R1, at 3 (May 20, 2016) (on file with the Subcommittee).

60 Jd. at 3-5.

81 Letter from Senior Aviation Safety Inspector, Certificate Mgmt. Off.-Boeing, Fed. Aviation Admin., to Ernesto
Gonzalez-Beltran, Vice President of Quality, Boeing, CMP2018NM420004 (November 8, 2017) (on file with the
Subcommittee) [hereinafter “November 8 Letter”]; Letter from Senior Aviation Safety Inspector, Certificate Mgmt.
Off.-Boeing, Fed. Aviation Admin., to Ernesto Gonzalez-Beltran, Vice President of Quality, Boeing,
EIR2018NM420001 (November 17, 2017) (on file with the Subcommittee) [hereinafter “November 17 Letter”];
Letter from Senior Aviation Safety Inspector, Certificate Mgmt. Off.-Boeing, Fed. Aviation Admin., to Ernesto
Gonzalez-Beltran, Vice President of Quality, Boeing, CMP2018NM420008 (November 20, 2017) (on file with the
Subcommittee) [hereinafter “November 20 Letter”].

62 November 8 Letter at 2.

83 1d. at 2.

6 Id. at 2-3.



The FAA’s November 8 letter did not identify any non-compliant Boeing procedures that
the FAA had approved, but noted that several non-compliant Business Process Instructions
(“BPIs”) appeared to “modify and/or circumvent” the FAA-approved procedures.®® A November
17 letter explicitly rebuked Boeing’s practice of using non-FAA approved practices to contravene
the policies the FAA did approve.®® The November 17 letter explains that, in 2015, Boeing had
promised to undertake several corrective actions in response to a 2015 FAA audit of the 787
Everett factory that identified documents “throughout all aircraft programs . . . that modif[ied]
and/or appear[ed] to circumvent” approved policies but which themselves “can be modified or
changed without notification to the FAA.”%” But in a subsequent 2017 audit completed just five
months after the FAA issued its acceptance of Boeing’s 2015 corrective actions, the FAA again
discovered important safety documents that Boeing had not cleared with the agency, and thus the
FAA informed Boeing of its “failure to implement” and “unsatisfactory implement|ation]” of
its promised actions.%® The FAA’s November 20 letter identified similar problems.®® On January
16, 2018, in response to the November 8 and 17 letters, Boeing pledged to revise the inappropriate
documents to comply with the law.”

One year later, Boeing’s effort to remove quality inspection apparently continued despite
the October 2018 LionAir 737 MAX crash, which took the lives of 189 passengers and crew.’* In
January 2019, The Seattle Times reported that Boeing aimed to eliminate a total of 900 inspector
positions across their Washington state factories in 2019 and 2020—a nearly one-third reduction
in inspector headcount.”? At the time, Boeing claimed that new, automated tools were so accurate
that they made quality inspections unnecessary.” Boeing’s manufacturing union, District 751 of
the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, on the other hand, argued that
Boeing had artificially depressed the number of recorded defects in order to justify eliminating
inspections by pressuring inspectors to approach mechanics informally to repair defects rather than
formally document them, “essentially masking defects.”’* Indeed, even before The Seattle Times’
reporting, the union was the first to raise concerns about Boeing’s plan to cut inspections.” By

8 Jd. at 2. The FAA proactively reviews and approves high-level Boeing system changes (called “Procedures,” or
“PROs”), while merely requiring Boeing to notify the agency of lower-level changes (called “Business Process
Instructions,” or “BPIs”). See Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on
file with the Subcommittee).

% November 17 Letter at 1.

57 1d. at 1.

%8 Id. at 2.

89 See November 20 Letter.

70 See Letter from Senior Manager, Boeing Com. Airplanes, for Dir., Boeing Com. Airplanes, to Aircraft
Certification Serv., Fed. Aviation Admin., 6-1032-RQSO-MAS18-018R1, at 6 (Jan. 16, 2018) (on file with the
Subcommittee).

"l Niniek Karmini et al., Lion Air Crash Report Points to Boeing, Pilots, Maintenance, ASSOCIATED PRESS (Oct. 25,
2019, 6:59 PM), https://apnews.com/article/ede40d989be6486329405802d6bb083b.

2 Dominic Gates, Boeing Overhauls Quality Controls: More High-tech Tracking but Fewer Inspectors, SEATTLE
TIMES (Jan. 20, 2019, 5:01 PM), https://www.seattletimes.com/business/boeing-aerospace/boeing-overhauls-its-
quality-controls-more-high-tech-tracking-but-fewer-inspectors/.

BUd.

4 Not OK to Cut QA is Message on Boeing’s Plan, DISTRICT 751 AERO MECHANIC, Dec. 2018-Jan. 2019, at 4,
https://www.iam751.org/docs/Dec_2018Jan2019Aero.pdf.

5 See id. at 1.
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2019, the FAA had substantiated several instances of Boeing failing to document defects, which
Boeing claimed represented isolated instances of employees not following the rules.’

Boeing Vice President of Quality, Ernesto Gonzalez-Beltran—the same individual to
whom all three 2017 FAA letters were addressed—was “spearhead[ing]” the inspection removal
effort, which aimed to shift from having inspectors “check[ing] every airplane” to now only
“check[ing] once every 100 parts or every 1,000 parts.”’” Boeing said it was “trying to walk away
from” “everybody [being] dependent on a second person,” and instead have “the
mechanic . . . verify their own work”—in doing so, Boeing observed that “wait time is
eliminated.”’® At the time, Boeing claimed that the FAA “endorse[s] and understand[s]” the
changes, and assured the public that Boeing was only eliminating inspections in processes that
experienced few defects.”®

Mr. Barnett observed similar trends in Charleston. He alleged that although the Puget
Sound factories assigned one quality inspector to cover every nine mechanics (at least until Barnett
left in 2010), in Charleston (where he worked from 2010 to 2017) he saw “times where one
inspector was trying to cover 50 to 100 mechanics on two different airplanes,” explaining that even
covering just nine mechanics “was a busy day” and that he “d[id]n’t see how in the world anybody
could keep up with 50.”8 Barnett highlighted an example of how management responded to his
insistence that the factory allow for quality inspections:

[1]t wasn’t three minutes later, [a manager] ringing me, you know, chewing me
out about stopping production. . .. [A]nd I was called up to the office. . . . And they
put me in the corner, in a chair. And there’s about five of them standing over me
with their arms crossed. Where does it say we can’t do this?%

In 2021, two years after The Seattle Times reported on the push to reduce inspections that
Boeing came to call “Verification Optimization” (“VO”)—after another 737 MAX crash
(Ethiopian Air Flight 302) led to the loss of 157 lives and the replacement of CEO Dennis
Muilenburg with Dave Calhoun—the FAA issued a letter rebuking several elements of VO (2021
letter”).82 This previously non-public letter is attached at Attachment 6.8 The problems that the
FAA’s 2021 letter identified were similar to those identified in the FAA’s earlier letters, which,
according to a Whistleblower, had simply been repackaged after their initial rejection by the
FAA.2 According to the FAA, these problems included the following:

76 Gates, supra note 73.

" Id.

8 Id.

" Id.

8 Barnett Dep. Vol. 1 34, Attachment 3; Barnett Dep. Vol. 2 49-50, 60, Attachment 4.

81 Barnett Dep. Vol. 2 32.

82 Brakkton Booker, Boeing CEO Dennis Muilenburg Is Out, NAT’L PUB. RADIO (Dec. 23,2019, 10:26 AM),
https://www.npr.org/2019/12/23/790750329/boeing-ceo-dennis-muilenburg-to-step-down; Letter from Senior
Aviation Safety Inspector, Certificate Mgmt. Off.-Boeing, Fed. Aviation Admin., to Vice President of Commercial
Airplanes Quality, Boeing, EIR2021NM420001 (May 18, 2021), Attachment 6 [hereinafter “2021 Letter”].
832021 Letter, Attachment 6.

8 See Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on file with the
Subcommittee).
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e “Boeing procedures [we]re not adequate for determining the required inspections and
tests used to ensure the product conforms to its approved design . . . .78

e A new program, Manufacturing Assurance and Process Surveillance (“MAPS”), that
“enable[ed] the removal of . . . inspections performed by Quality Inspectors” and instead
inappropriately assigned “inspections to manufacturing personnel” did “not meet Boeing
quality system requirements or FAA regulatory requirements . . . .”%

e “The FAA found no process that describes how Boeing determines appropriate business
decisions to justify the removal of mandatory Quality inspections.”®’

e Certain procedures “enable[ed] the removal of a Quality inspection/witnessing of the . . .
functional tests. The FAA determined Quality cannot accept a completed functional
tests [sic] by relying on document review alone. If the Quality organization does not
witness the functional test, then it cannot verify the accuracy of the information
collected . .. 788

e “The FAA found evidence that Boeing inappropriately delegated inspection authority
to Manufacturing personnel who did not have the appropriate training or
certification, inappropriately delegated Quality inspections associated with certain
engineering requirements to Manufacturing personnel, and allowed the indication of
product verification and acceptance with a Manufacturing stamp, in violation of the Boeing
quality system requirements.”®°

It is not clear what actions have been taken either by the FAA or Boeing since the FAA
issued the 2021 letter. The Subcommittee’s Whistleblower indicated that while they believe that
Boeing had restored many of the eliminated inspections, some processes continue to go without a
quality inspection.®® Boeing’s repeated efforts to remove quality inspections raise a number of
unanswered questions including:

e Has Boeing restored all of the removed inspections?

e How many planes are currently in service that were built after Boeing’s reduction of quality
inspections?

e What corrective action has Boeing taken in response to the 2021 letter, and what
enforcement action, if any, has the FAA pursued?

852021 Letter at 5, Attachment 6.

8 Jd. at 5-6, Attachment 6.

87 Id. at 7, Attachment 6.

8 Jd. at 9, Attachment 6.

8 Jd. at 6, Attachment 6.

% See Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on file with the
Subcommittee); Email from Anonymous Whistleblower to Subcommittee staff (June 11, 2024) (on file with the
Subcommittee).
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According to the Subcommittee’s Whistleblower, Boeing continues to generate new
iterations of VO.%! They told the Subcommittee that the program called “Multi-Function Process
Performer” (“MFPP”) in Charleston essentially amounts to “the second generation” of the MAPS
program that the FAA rejected in 2021.92 Although by late 2022 Boeing had reversed the element
of MFPP that allowed Charleston mechanics to inspect their own work, the Whistleblower alleges
that MFPP still allows two mechanics who work side by side to agree to inspect each others’
work.%

%1 See Notes of Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on file with the
Subcommittee).

92 See id.

9 David Wren, Boeing Makes Inspection Changes, Promises to Heed Worker Complaints in Safety Push, POST AND
COURIER (Dec. 4, 2022), https://www.postandcourier.com/business/boeing-makes-inspection-changes-promises-to-
heed-worker-complaints-in-safety-push/article 1a48cf78-724e-11ed-b974-5b5f17¢08841.html; Notes of
Subcommittee staff call with Anonymous Whistleblower (June 11, 2024) (on file with the Subcommittee); accord
Barnett Dep. Vol. 2 55, Attachment 4 (“[I]f you look back at the MFPP process, you know, that’s basically the same
thing they were wanting to do with that is, have the mechanics buy off their own work.”).
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ST. ANDREWS LAW CENTER
768 St. Andrews Boulevard, Charleston, South Carolina 29407
OFFICE (843) 628-7868 CELL (843) 696-4549 FAX (843) 277-1438

Admitted 10 practice in South Carolina and New York

June 11, 2024
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Regional Administrator, Region X
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
United States Department of Labor

300 Fifth Ave., Suite 1280

Seattle, WA 98104

RE:. Samuel H. Mohawk, Jr. v. The Boeing Company

vee R
On behalf of my client, Sam Mohawk, I am enclosing for filing a complaint of retaliation under
the Wendell H. Ford Aviation Investment and Reform Act for the 21* Century, 49 U.S.C. § 42121.
Please direct ali comrespondence regarding Mr. Mohawk’s complaint to me or my co-counsel, Brian
Knowles. We look forward to working with you as OSHA investigates this matter.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions.

Respectfully submitted,

S/Robert M. Turkewitz

Encl: As described
cc: Sam Mohawk
Brian Knowles, Esq.



IN THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

)
SAMUEL H, MOHAWK, IR., ) Case No.
)
Complainant, )]
)} COMPLAINANT’S INITIAL
v. ) COMPLAINT
)
THE BOEING COMPANY, ) (ATR-21)
)
Respondent, )
)

Samuel H. Mohawk, Jr. (“Mohawk,” “Complainant,” or *“Whistleblower™), by and
through his counsel of the law firms of Knowles Law Firm, PC and the Law Office of Robert
M. Turkewitz, LLC, hereby submits this Initial Complaint to the United States Department of
Labor Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”), against the Whistleblower’s
current employer The Boeing Company (“Boeing” or “Respondent”) for unlawful retaliation
in violation of the whistieblower protection provision of Wendell H. Ford Aviation
Investment and Reform Act for the 21st Century (“AIR-21%), 49 U.S.C. § 42121.

THE PARTIES
1. Samuel H. Mohawk, Jr. worked at Bocing in Quality Assurance as an inspector and
investigator from approximately 2011 to the present.
2, The Boeing Company manufactures civilian aircraft, including but not limited to the 737
MAX, 777, and 787, along with military aircraft such as the P-8 (which is a modified 737 NG).
Much of the 737 MAX and P-8 production occurs at its Renton, Washington plant. However,

Boeing’s corporate offices are located in Arlington, Virginia.



FACTS

3. Complainant worked as a Line QA inspector at Boeing’s 747 plant at Everett, Washington
from 2011 to 2013. He worked as an inspector on the 777 for six months, then at the Material
Review Segregation Area (MRSA) on Flight Test dealing with experimental aircraft from 2013 to
2016. From November 2016 to present, Mohawk worked as MRSA Rework Investigator 54506
for Boeing’s 737 program covering the Delivery Center in Seattle (2017 to 2021) and the factory
for the remaining time.

4, At MRSA, Complainant handles non-conforming material, scrap parts, emergent issues,
and Non-Conformance Reviews (NCRs) for both the commercial and military 737 lines. When
an aircraft part is found defective or damaged, not per drawing or specification, it is deemed
non-conforming. The part then receives a Non-Conformance Review (NCR) number, is tagged
with a red tag to physically indicate that it is a non-conforming part, and is held in the MRSA cage
— larger parts are held outside of the cage but under the care of MRSA. Non—conforming parts
may not be used on an aircraft before an engineering disposition granting approval to do so.
Having “lost parts™ means that the locations of these non-conforming parts are unknown. Notably,
Mohawk believes that many of the missing parts were unlawfully installed on aircraft.

5. Non-Conformance Reviews (NCRs) can be either generated by Boeing or created by its
suppliers when shipping a part that is defective or damaged (a Supplier Notice of Non-
Conformance (“SNN™)). Once the part receives an engincering disposition from Boeing, MRSA
creates another NCR (child NCR), which is then unitized with the. parent NCR and becomes a
part of the build record, if the part is used on an aircraft. This process ensures an accurate

build process and provides customers with notice that a non-conforming part was instalied that has









with the R/Rs and non-conforming parts control, as well as covered space to keep the parts out of
the elements. Without any justification, Mohawk was told that he needed to make do with the
current staffing tevels and covered space.

13.  When the FAA gave Boeing the green light to begin production again, Boeing attempted
to build at a rate of 40+ planes a month with a goal of 50+ planes a month. Boeing quickly realized
that the cuts in quality and the practice of having mechanics inspect their own work was ill advised.
Boeing reversed its trend of cufting quality and started to hire. Unfortunately, many of the new
Quality Inspectors had no aviation experience. The Quality Inspector support structure, including
Quality Inspectors and mechanic training, had been drastically reduced for Quality Inspectors and
mechanics prior to reaching the floor. Once on the floor, Quality Inspectors/Mechanics no longer
had the support of experienced personnel working beside them. With reduced training and
oversight, Boeing Corporate’s push to get the airplanes out the door as quickly as possible was
causing quality lapses and failures.

14.  Mohawk was responsible for picking up the non-conforming parts and screening NCRs to
make sure they were written according to Boeing's BPIs. As the production ramped up, Mohawk
noticed mistakes. For example, many defective parts removed from airplanes were not documented
per PRO-5500. Parts were left in MRA boxes for Mohawk to pick up or just thrown into a
hanger/storage with no segregation control. These mistakes were making it difficult for Mohawk
to do his job.

15.  Mohawk emailed QA management to inform them of the non-compliance. Rather than
taking action to solve the problem, management ordered him to “just pick up the parts.” With new
inexperienced Quality Inspectors and Mechanics not adequately trained and supervised working

on the planes, the number of parts being removed was increasing. MRSA started to run out of






























the protected activity contributed to the adverse actions, and that Boeing would not have taken the
adverse actions in the absence of that behavior. See 49 U.S.C. § 4212 1(h)}(2)(B)(ii) (employer must
ptove by clear and convincing evidence that it would have taken the same adverse action “in the
absence of” the protected activity); Halliburton, Inc., 771 ¥.3d at 262-63,
40.  As a result of the Company’s unlawful conduct, Mohawk has experienced significant
reputational, emotional, and professional harm.
REQUESTED RELIEF
Complainant prays the Secretary of Labor for the following relief:
(2} Issue a finding that the Company vioclated the anti-retaliation provisions of AIR-21;
(b) Award Complainant damages for the economic losses he has sustained or will likely
sustain as result of the Company’s unlawful adverse actions against him;
(c) Award Complainant compensatory damages for the pain, suffering, reputational harm,
and emotional distress;
(d) Direct Boemg to remove negative comments about Complainant in his performance
reviews;
(e) Award Complainant’s attorneys’ fees and costs; and

{f) Grant such other relief as the Secretary of Labor deems just and necessary

Respectfully Submitted,
LAw OFFICE OF ROBERT M. TURKEWITZ, LLC

sfRobert M. Turkewitz

Robert M. Turkewitz, Esquire

768 St. Andrews Blvd., Charleston, SC 29407
T: (843) 628-7868

F:(843) 277-1438

rob@rmtlegal.com

www.rmtlegal.com
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KNOWLES LAW FIRM, PC

Brian M. Knowles, Esquire

768 St. Andrews Blvd., Charleston, SC 29407
T: 843-810-7596

F: 877-408-1078

brian@knowlesintemnational.com
www . knowlesinternational.com

June 11, 2024
Charleston, South Carolina Attorneys for the Complainant

16



Exhibit A












Exhibit B






Y LAELING

Employee signature acknowledges receipt of this document only.
2024-05-17 18:34:50

—
—

. _ ] S
S ‘(wle“ﬂbh“[ Wz«c’c L %":,b; o
[



Attachment 2






Attachment 3






Boeing Proprietary
Committee Confidential

John Barnett - Confidential - 3/7/2024

Page 1
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
Case Number: 2021-AIR-00007

*** CONFIDENTIAL TRANSCRIPT ***

John M. Barnett,
Complainant,
V.

The Boeing Company,

et e ot et e o S

Respondent. )
LR R R R R o g R R R R R ]

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITICON OF:

JOHN M. BARNETT - VOL 1

DATE TAKEN: Thursday, March 7, 2024
TIME: 10:00 A.M.
PLACE:

REPORTED BY: . rer, cir, cvr-s

and Notary Public

BOEING_PSI_01099420



Boeing Proprietary
Committee Confidential

John Barnett - Confidential - 3/7/2024

APPEARANCES
REPESENTING THE COMPLAINANT:
ROBERT M TURKEWITZ, ESQUIRE
Law Office of Robert M, Turkewilz, LLC
768 St. Andrews Boulevard
Charleston, South Cargling 29407
{843) 628-7368
robfZrmilegal com
BRIAN M KNOWLES, ESQUIRE
MARTINA KNOWLES
Knowles Law Firm, PC
768 St. Andrews Blvd.
Charleston, South Carolina 29407
(843) 810-7596
brian@lmowlasinlemational .com
REPRESENTING THE RESPONDENT:

ALSO PRESENT:

VIDEQGRAPHER

Page 2

Page 3
INDEX
Testimony of John M. Bameti

Direct Examiination by mﬁ
Cross-E: kewilz, 387
389

CERTIFICATE....

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Defendani’s Exhibit No. 1 - Job Dcmpuon Quaillv
Mubtifamily Mamger.
Delndani’s Exhibit No. 2 - First Arends Complmnl S0
Defendan’s Exhibit No. 3 - Emails
DEF 00:484-001505........74
Dafendant’s Exbibit No. 4 - Emails 231-233.........76
Drfendant’s Exhibit No. 5 - Bamett 2014 Porfomance
Management 7415724
DEF 007035-007039........83
Defendant's Exhibit No. & - Email/60-Day Action Plan
2420,3523.........96
Defendant's Exhibit No. 7 - Bamnett 2014 Performance
Management 12/23714
DEF (07026-007034.......104
Defendant's Exhibi No. § - Emails
DEF 001520008522, _..10%
Defendant's Exhibit No. 9 - Emails
3678-368%, 3698......... 133
Defendant’s Exhibit No. 10 - Emails
3672-3674, 3678-3679...119
Defendant’s Exhibil No. £1 - Case Details Report
DEF 007363007365.......133
Deferdant’s Exlibit No. 12 - Emails
DEF £01289-001294...... 140
Deferndant's Exhibit No. 13 - Emails
DEF 001335-00133
Defeadant’s Exhibit No. 14 - Emails
DEF 001207-001208...... 149
Defeadani's F.\lnbn. No. 15 - Emails
DEF 062077-002080..
Defendant’s Exlibit No. 16 - Email - Swan)
DEF 001404-001405..
Defndant’s Exigbit No. 17 - Emails
DEF 001213-001220..... 155
Defendant’s Exhibit No_ 18 - Email
1472 .66

Defendant’s Exhibii No, 19 - Enwils
DEF 007240-007242_._177
Deferdant's Exhibiz No. 20 - Eaniks
314 183

Detendm’s Exhitit No. 22
DEF 00722 14)07216
Defendant’s Exhibit No. 23 - Enmils
DEF907227-007232......193
Defendan’s E\'hihix No, 24 EnnilfOpcn NC S01 Pl
19

Defendan's E\Iub;l No 25~ Emls
EF 008791, 199
Defendus’s E\lllb!l No 26- Emalls
DEF 06803006804, 202
Defendant’s h\luhal No. 27 - Emils
EF OD6RL

Defendant’s E\hlbllNl! 28 - Enuils

Defendant’s Exhibit No. 39 - Emails
EF 007232-007236
Defendart’s Exhibit No. 31 - Emails
DEF 0U7236-00723Y...223
Defendant's Exhibit No, 32 - Email
DEF G06616...... . 234
Defendant's Exhibit No. 33 - EHRI hivestigation Report
DEF 007366-007374.....243
Defendand’s Exhibit No. 34 - Ennils
DEF 047259-007269.....2.
Defondant's E.\hlbll Nn 35 - Email
251
Detendny's E\Iub:l Na 36 Enail
2515 269
Defendant's Exdibit No. 37 - Enils
DEF 002615002620, ._269
Defendant’s Exhibil No. 38 - Emails
DER0O70-G07274.....273
Defenduni's Exhibit Ne. 39 - Case Detaiks Report
DEF 007376-007382......285
Delendant’s Exhibil Mo, 40 - Emil
07383, 289
Defendanr’s Exhibii No, 41 - Case Sumimary
DEF 007140-007142.....301

30

Page 4

v @ @

Page 5

Defendant's Exhibit No. 42 - Talent Profiles
DEF 007136-007137,
DEF 007389............312
Defendant's Exhibit No. 43 - Emails
DEF 007296-007298..
Defendant's Exhibit No, 44 - Emails
DEF 007284-007285......350
Defendant's Exhibit No. 45 - Medical Records
Medical 00-107........ 364
Defendant’s Exhibit No. 46 - e aag Record
4019-4020.............. 376

2 (Pages 2 to 5)

BOEING_PSI_01099421
















Boeing Proprietary

Committee Confidential

John Barnett - Confidential - 3/7/2024

Page 22 Page 23
: Q. -- was that? ! Q. Uh-huh.
? A. --and that type of thing. It was Seattle ? A. - or listing material, BOM -- billing
3 University, I believe. [t was the == it was an arm of 3 materials, excuse me. I took some management classes,
4 it. It was actually in Everett, but I think it was 4 some off-hour, like, communicating across cultures and,
i under the Seattle University name. s you know, cornmunication classes -
5 Q. Was this in person or online? s Q. Uh-huh
7 A. Mostly in person, but there was some online, ? A. --and that type of thing. There's 2 whole
? too. But most of it was classroom. 8 list.
2 Q. How many year -~ years were you enrolled in ¢ Q. Okay.
1o Seattle University? 10 A. Those are the main ones right off the top of
u A. Soitwas a total of four years, The first 1 my head.
12 three years, I was carrying a GPA of 4.0. And then the 2 Q. And apologies if you already said this, but
= fourth year, we went to mandatory 12-hour days, seven 13 what years were you enrolled?
u days a week. And my grade -- GPA starting skipping, so H A. Let'ssee. That'd go back to, I'd say, the
1 I dropped out of the classes — 15 early 2000s, like, maybe 2000 to 2004. It might have
6 Q. Uh-huh 6 been, like, '99 to 2004, somewhere arcund in there.
7 A. --so I could work. B Q. 1999 to 2004, you think?
e Q. And what were you studying at Seatile 18 A. Right, yeah, somewhere around there,
9 University? e Q. And what did you say your GPA was when you —
20 A. Wscalled the APICS, program, A-P-1.C-S. | 2 when you left; do you remember?
e forget what that acronym stands for. But, basically, = A. Tt seems like it was a - like, a 3.75 or
2 in a nutshell, it's inventory management, manage- -- 2z somewhere around there.
23 dealing with the supply chain and inventory and -- and 3 Q. Okay. Have you received any education or
24 working with M-BOMs, which is material -- billing 2 vocational training, not education - strike that,
2 material -- 25 Have you have received any vocational
Page 24 Page 25
t training, any certificates or training outside of ! A. So this gets a little confusing. But -- s0 1
E college? 2 spent four years working with Rock- -- or five years —
3 A. Yeah. So Boeing has a pretty extensive 3 working with Rockwell International. 1 worked on the
4 training program. And they offer - offer off-hour 4 space shuttle program for two and a half years, And I
® classes and off-hour training, And I took a lot of ® worked on the Bl bomber program for about two and a
8 advantage of that, again, probably hundreds, if not é half years. And then -- and at this time, I was living
b close to a thousand, hours of off-hour training. And 7 in Lancaster, California, or Palmdale, California.
8 within that training, you either eam qualifications or 8 And Boeing had come down to hire for the B2
8 9

10

12
13
14
13
15
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

25

certifications.

Q. Uh-huh

A, 1 can't remember specific certifications that
I've gained, but quite -~ quite extensive off-hour

fraining -~

Q. And that was all --

A, - through Boeing.

Q. -~ through ~- through Boeing?

A. That's correct.

Q. Do you hold any protessional licenses or
certificates?

A. No.

Q. Okay.

A. No,

Q. Allright. Let's talk a little bit about
your employment history prior to Boeing. Remind me
when you started at Boeing.

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
e
19
20

21

23
24
z5

program, the Stealth. And 1 had applied and was
accepted, was given a job offer on contention that I
compliete a security clearance. So I went through a
security clearance. They did a - they did a
background check and all that, I earned a secret
security clearance. But after that clearance came
through, 1 got a phone call saying they had overhived
there, but that if I wanted a job in Seattie,
Washington, they would transfer me and my family up
there. And they had a job for me up there, which }
aceepted.

Q. Okay. And did -~ did you have a family at
that time that you took with you to Seattle?

A. Yes. 1wasmarried and had two stepsons.

Q. Okay. And that was not SRR

A. No.

Q. - though? Okay.

7 (Pages 22 to 25

)

BOEING_PSI_01099426



Boeing Proprietary

Committee Confidential

John Barnett - Confidential - 3/7/2024

Page 26 Page 27

' And so you're -- you've been divorced? 1 A. Before Rockwell?

z A. Correct. 2 Q. Uh-huh.

3 Q. Okay. Okay. So - so when did you start at 3 A. So before Rockwell, I was at home in

. Sea- -- in Seattle? Was that in 20047 4 Louisiana.

® A. No. ® Q. And were you working?

s Q. Or- 8 A. Yeah, I was driving a cab and...

7 A. SoIwas actually in Puget Sound. They 7 Q. Okay.

¢ relocated me up there in 1988. '887 Yeah, '88. 8 A. Yeah. Wasn't much job opportunity down

¢ Q. Okay. Well, when you say they relocated you, ? there.
Lo you -- you mean -- (hat - that -~ you started at Lo Q. So you were a cab driver prior to working for
1 Boeing in 1988? 1t Rockwell?
2 A. Correct. 12 A. Correct.
13 Q. In Puget Sound? 3 Q. And what was your position when you were at
14 A. Correct. And that -- and, kind of, go back 14 Rockwell?
1= to after I started at Boeing in Puget Sound, then 3 A. Solstarted off as a -- what we called soft
e Boeing bought out Rockwell. And all of my time served 8 tooling. It was a plaster patternmaker on the space
17 at Roclowell was added to my time at Boeing, o shuttle program.
18 Q. Oh,I--okay. e Q. Uh-huh.
9 A. Yeah, so... 12 A. And! was responsible for making the patterns
2 Q. Okay. So you were at Rockwell prior to 20 for the heat shields that's on the outside of the space
2 Boeing? 21 shuttle. So my responsibility was o make the patterns
2 A. Correct. 2 for the tiles for the heat shields, so they could be
23 Q. For, I think, you said four or five years? 23 cut out and working within close tolerances to make
2 A. Correct, 24 sure they fit lightly together.
s Q. And where were you before that? 28 Q. Uh-huh. So was it, kind of, like a plaster

Page 28 Page 29

. molding kind of thing? ' A, That's correct.

2 A, Some of that. We used foam. We used layups, 2 Q. And what position did you hold when you first

3 We used various different types of things like that. * got to Boeing?

4 Q. Okay. And did you have that position the 4 A. Electrician ~-

s whole time you were at Rockwell? 5 Q. Okay.

N A. No. Soldid that for two and a half years, s A. - on the 747 program.

? roughly. And then the space shuttle program basically 7 Q. You didn't stay in that position, though,

2 closed -- closed down in Palmdale. They moved 8 obviously, right?

9 El

everything to southern California and down to Florida,
And 1 was laid off. So, at that time is when I applied
for the B1 job. And [ was hired on under the Air Force
{0 work on the B1 bomber.

Q. Uh-huh.

A, And I did that for about two and half years.

Q. Okay. And what did you do in that
position?

A, 1was an electrician, so I ran wiring,
made -- hooked up connectors, ran wire bundles,
anything, really, to do with wiring, splices,
soldering, all that stuff.

Q. Okay. And you held that electrician position
the whole time, until the end of your employment at
Rockwell?

A. That's correct.

Q. And then you went to Boeing in 19887

A. Right. Yeah,

Q. How many -- eventually, you made it to
quality multifamily manager, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. How many positions did you hold between the
electrician position that you first had at Beeing to
when you got to the quality family manager position?

A, Solwas an electrician, took some off-hour
training and classes to qualify to get into quality. I
became a quality inspector on the 78~ -- or the 747-400
program. [ was an inspector on that program probably,
F'd say, a year, year and a haif,

And that's when we had a big, long strike
there in Puget Sound. And we were out of work for,
like, 69 days. When we came back, they moved me over
to receiving inspection as an inspector, So I'd
inspect the parts coming in -

8 (Pages 26 to 29)
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Page 30 Page 31
' Q. Uh-huh : manager. So I oversaw various areas within receiving
2 A, --the products coming in from our suppliers. 2 over the next couple of years.
3 And 1 did that for a while. I--I can't remember 3 Q. You're still talking about your ~- when you
4 exactly how long, probably a year or so. 4 were at Everett; is that correct?
5 And then 1 was offered -- offered an s A. That's correct.
s opportunity to join the planaing group, where guality 8 Q. Yeah. Your work record indicates that you
7 planning, at that time, was responsible for pooling all ? were a quality systems specialist 4, from June 2007 to
8 their requirements for inspection of product and ¢ November 2010. And then you became a quality
2 inspection of things coming through the door. Sol- ¢ multifamily manager in 2010; does that sound right?
0 I created the inspection plans that the create- -~ that 1o A. Yeah. So the quality -
i the inspectors were working to. 1 did that for a 1 Q. Okay.
12 while. And then I was offered a position as an e A. --specialist 4 is when I was the auditor -
i3 auditor. So I -- I was lead auditor for receiving 13 Q. Okay.
L inspection. 14 A, -- lead auditor, yeah. Yeah.
s And -- and during that time, as -- as lead e Q. But that's not a manager position?
18 auditor, [ developed an 1 1-course curriculum to train 18 A. That's correct.
7 other auditors on how to audit processes and procedures b Q. And you got the manager position in 2010,
18 at Boeing. e Was that in connection with your transfer to Boeing
12 And then —~ let's see. After my auditing, | 19 South Carolina plant?
20 believe that's -- I went from an auditor to ~- [ was 20 A. No, that was Everett.
2 offered a first-line quality manager position on the b Q. Okay. And you mentioned you were -- there
2 747, in production and body structures, 2z had been a strike at Everett. That's a uniomized
3 Q. Uh-huh. a3 facility?
2 A. And T worked that for a while. Then I was 24 A. That's correct.
s transferred back to receiving inspection as a quality 2% Q. Were you a member of the union?
Page 32 Page 33
N A. Prior to that question, yes, [ was, ' manager role, that's a level K position; is that
2 Q. Prior to? 2 right?
3 A. Select -- during the strike - 3 A. Depending on where you're at, it could be a
4 Q. Uh-huh. s level K or alevel .
s A. --yes,  was -~ | was a union member. Once 5 Q. Uh-huh.
8 I'went into the planning organization, it was no longer & A, Soif you're over hourly people in - in
7 7
B
9

Uh-huh.
I was under SPEEA -
Uh-huh.
-- whereas the other -
Did you -
-- union was 1AM,
Uh-huh. Did you stay — did you become a
member of the other union?
A. Tdid
Q. Okay. So you were a union member the entire
time you were at Everett; is that right?
No. Because once you get into management --
Right,
-- you're no longer in the union,
Right.
So...
Yeah. Okay. So the quality multifamily

RFLOFOPLO

LCFLOPQF

SPEEA representatives, it would be considered a J.

Q. Uh-huh,

A, And I might have got those reversed, but it's
aJand K -

Okay.

-- type role.

But you were alevel K, correct?

Yes.

Okay.

Correct.

And you held that role until the time of your
retiremient; is that correct?

A. From the time I went to 747-400 to this?

Q. Well, right. Your work history indicates
that, from November 2010 until February 2017, you were
a level K quality multifamily manager?

A, Correct.

CrOFLOPLO
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1 Q. Ubh-huh. 1 A. T'm sorry.
2 A. And it talks about, you know, reviewing data 2 Q. -- your -~ the -~ the job duties that you had
3 and understanding data, and type of thing, so — 3 when you held that position?
¢ Q. Okay. ‘ A. Correct.
s A, --justalot of different -- ? Q. Okay. Ifyou go to the third page, the - it
6 Q I'm-— 6 says at the top, Competencies, and then, Competency
7 A. --areas. 7 Type: General. Do you see that?
8 Q. -- I'm going to show you a copy of what I s A. Yes.
° believe is the multifamily manager level K job ° Q. And the first paragraph, the heading is,
e description. 1o Adaptabitity?
1 A. Yes, perfect. 1 A. Yes.
12 {Defendant's Exhibit No. | marked for 1z Q. Do you agree -- and -- and then there are a
B identification, 3 couple other -~ or several other headings, There's
14 —: 1 Puilding Positive Relationship; do you see that?
s Q. Does that ook familiar to you? 18 A, Yes.
16 A. Initially, yes, absolutely. i Q. Business {Operational} Acumen; do you see
v Q. And that - R that?
18 A. Yeah, here you go. 18 A. Yes.
19 Q. -- page 2, representative major tasks - 19 Q. Communication, Continuous Improvement, and
20 A. Right, 20 Customer Focus?
2 Q. -~ that fooks familiar to you? 2t A, Yes.
ez A. Right. 22 Q. Do you see that? Decision Making, I think,
22 Q. And would you agree that that —- 23 is the last one on that page there, It goes on and on.
e A, Yes. 24 But these -~ this -~ this is describing,
25 Q. - matches 28 essentially, the necessary attributes, what it takes to
Page 40 Page 41
! be a quality multifamily manager; is -- is that -- does ! A. Tthink, again, it's a subset. And -- and as
z that sound right? 2 a quality manager and -- as far as — if you look at
? A. Well, that's a subset of alt of it, But, 2 the major tasks, it talks about, Implements policies,
¢ ves, I'd agree with that. i procedures, documents to ensure consistent execution of
® Q. Ub-huh. And if you look at Adapt- - under B processes within work group in support of Boeing and
é Adaptability, it says, Understand changes in own and ¢ regulatory requirements.
7 fellow K-level manangers' work and situations; explains 7 So Iwould say that this was my main
8 the lfogic or basis for change to employees and/or N responsibility, this -- the -- the health of the
b3 9

10
3l
12
13

x4

16
17
is
i9
20

21

23
24

25

feltow first-level managers; is seen as an expert
first-level management resource on information about
changes -- changes affecting own and fellow first-level
managers' jobs, Treats changes and new situations as
opportunities for leamning or growth; focuses on the
beneficial aspect of change; speaks positively about
the change to fellow first-level managers and external
customers. Quickly modifies behavior to deal
effectively with changes in the work environment;
readily tries new approaches appropriate for new or
changed situations; does not persist with ineffective
behaviors.
Did I read that correctly?

A. Yes.

Q. And you would agree that that was an
important attribute to have as a quatity multifamily
manager?

Nt MM NN e e o e b e b e
[ X - R I T T R T I

airplane, the product we were building.

Q. Uh-huh.

A.  As a quality manager or anybody in quality,
that should be your main focus, is the health of the
airplane and the product we're -

Uh-huh.

-- producing.

But this -

These --

. - but you would agree that this is an

attribute that Boeing thought was important enough to
put in the job description, correct?

A Yes.

Q. Okay.

A, Yes.

Q. Allright. We can mark that. And I don't
think we'il need that anymore.

o>
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' A. Okay. t Q. And did that senjor quality manager report to
2 Q. Okay. Ijust want to talk generally about 2 anyone?
3 your reporting structure, We don't have to get 3 A. Yes.
¢ specific yet because I know you had several different 4 Q. And what would their title have been?
5 managers during your temwre. And you had team -~ s A.  So his boss would have been the
5 different team members that reported to you during your 8 superintendent or level M.
7 tenure. But just gen- -- as a general proposition, did ? Q. And did he have a particular title, or she?
8 you manage a team in your role as a quality multifamily 8 A. Superintendent -~
o manager? ° Q. Superintendent?
o A. I'msorry; could you ask that -- 10 A. - quality, yeah.
1 Q. Yeah. 1 Q. Sorry. Okay. And we just established that
12 A. Could you repeat that? 12 you -- you did manage employees as a level K manager.
et Q. Did -- did you manage employees? Did 13 Were you responsible for overseeing those employees'
H employees report to you -- H work?
15 A. Tdid i3 A, Yes.
8 Q. -- when you were a manager? 6 Q. Did you evaluate their performance?
v A. Yes. 17 A. Tdid
e Q. Okay. And did you report to 2 manager? e Q. You gave them performance reviews?
19 A, Yes. e A. That's correct.
20 Q. What was -- what would have been that 2 Q. Were you responsible for disciplining then,
2 person’s title? i if appropriate?
a2 A. Somy boss would have been a senior quality 22 A. Iwas responsible for taking appropriate
23 manager. 2 corrective action,
24 Q. Okay. And would that be a tevet L7 2 Q. Uh-huh.
5 A. L level, correct. zs A. Alot of times, if a situation came up, I
Page 44 Page 45
t would need to report it to HR so they could actually -- 1 Q. Okay. Did you ever terminate anyone?
2 excuse me -- they could actually determine what level 2 A, Hdid
3 of corrective action would be warranted or needed. 3 Q. And did you seek HR's guidance in doing that?
4 Q. Uh-huh. a A. Yes, every - every time, except for once. 1
5 A. And then they would give that to me. And I 5 had a contract employee. And contract employees ate
€ would take that action with the employee. s held to a little different standard. And I had an
! Q. Sowould you work with HR -- 7 employee I found was falsifying his time. So I --
8 A. Correct. 8 right when [ found it, I called up security and had him
o 9

i1
1z
13
14
15
16
17
18
ig
20
21
22
23
24
25

Q. --in-- in providing discipline or
corrective actions to your employees?

A. Correct.

Q. Okay. And was that Boeing's policy, to work
with HR?

A. Yeah. Yeah. Pretty much everything --
any -- any issues that arise, the manager’s responsible
for taking appropriate corrective action, right. So if
it came to -- when it comes down to disciplinary and
employees, and that type of thing, you must get HR
involved --

Q. Uh-huh.

A. -- to make sure that you're not stepping out
the bounds.

If it came to the product or the airplane,

then I typically didn't get HR involved because I had
my own corrective action processes to follow.

escorted out,

Q. Okay. How many employees did you terminate
in your time as a K-level manager at Boeing; do you
recall?

A. 1donot, no.

Q. More than -~

A, And -- and -- and one reason is because, if 1
went to HR for an employee issue and they dealt it -~
or felt it warranted a deeper investigation, they would
put the employee out on a leave or suspension or what
have you.

Q. Uh-huh,

A. Suspended without pay pending further
investigation.

Q. Uh-hub.

A. Onee it reached that point, T was, kind of,
out of the loop, and HR took over.

12 (Pages 42 to 45)
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Page 54 Page 55
1 Q. Okay. And the -- the motivation behind it b you're building airplanes.
2 was to allow manufacturers, again, to do their own z Q. Ubh-huh
? inspections in certain instances, but those -- or 2 A, They didn't have the experience, the
4 strike that -- the mechanics to do their own inspection 4 knowiedge, the training to do it. And we felt that
® in certain instances. But those mechanics were to be s they needed oversight, at least in the initiat
¢ trained, correct? é beginning, to make sure they were doing it right,
7 A. So,no. At the time it was being pitched, 7 before we just turned over the reins to them.
8 Iike I say, we hadn't even opened the final assembly § Q. Uh-huh. And quality inspectors remained at
s site. # BSC and continued 1o inspect the -~ the work of the
i Q. Uh-huh. 1o mechanics, correct?
1 A. And the -- the way it was explained o us was 1 A. So, yeah, quality inspectors remained, But
1z that they wanted to im- —~ implement MFPP to allow the 12 the number of quality inspectors was reduced quite a
B mechanics to buy off their own work so they could do 12 bit.
14 away with quality in that area, ” Q. Okay.
15 . Uh-huh. s A. So, yeah.
16 A. And the main reason we pushed back is ré Q. Bui, again, those mechanics went through a
b because, like I said earlier, this was a green site, v training program in order to inspect their work,
18 brand-new employees that never built an airplane in the 18 correct?
19 commercial airplane division at Boeing. 19 A. So now you're talking about after it was
20 Q. Ub-huh. 20 impletnented, And -- and I really wasn't part of that.
2 A. And our concern was, they need the experience 21 1 was really part of getting it set up. And they were
22 and the training. 22 telling us that we had to do this and -- even though we
= Q. Okay. = disagreed, and the fact that we felt very strongly it
= A. And -~ and our main pushback was, it was way 24 would put the airplane and the flying public at risk.
= too carly to fet a mechanic buy off their own work when = So our focus, again, was on the airplane and the
Page 56 Page 57
1 product we were producing -- ! Q. Right.
z Q. Uh-huh. 2 A. Yeah.
3 A. -- in which - doing everything we can to N Q. So-
4 make sure that we built and delivered safe and 4 A. It changed over time.
5 airworthy aircrafl. 3 Q. Right. But so, eventually, at — it's my
¢ Q. Sure. i understanding that the mechanics were not -- or —
7 A. So... ? strike that,
8 Q. Sure. So are you saying that you're not 8 It's my understanding that quality inspectors
N aware that the mechanics were trained, eventually, on ? were inspecting all work that impacted the safety of
e how to inspect their own work? 0 the airplane. Is that your understanding -
1t A, SoP'm not aware what training they went 1 understanding, as well?
t2 through, yes. 12 A. Well, so, [ would say that's an assumption.
13 Q. But you were aware that they went through 1 Because one of the things that we really pushed back on
14 training? 1 was removing inspection requirements for, like, torque
3 A. Twas told they were. ¥ verifications of fasteners. And when I saw the 37 door
16 Q. Okay. 6 plug blow out, and that the fasteners weren't
b A. But, yeah. Yeah, H installed, it's like, That's exactly what we were
Le Q. And these inspections that the mechanics 18 talking about.
12 would do on their own work, it wasn't for all the work 2 Q. Uh-huh
20 20

MR N
GBS N e

that they were performing on the airplane, correct?

A. Sothat -- that, kind of, evolved over time.
Initially, they wanted to, kind of] do a wholesale,
This is what we're going to do. And then, over time,
it got scaled back and scaled back and scaled back,
So...

A. By removing those inspection steps and
leaving it up to the mechanic to buy off their work,
that's the kind of thing this is -~

Q. Uh-huh,

A, - that you're going to see.

Q. Sowhen you say -- or when you disagreed with

15 {Pages 54 to 57
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t A. Yeah ' A. - before the deposition,
2 Q. Okay. And your deposition was originally 2 Q. Are you currently working, Mr. Barnett?
3 scheduled for the - last Thursday; is that correct? 3 A, No, I'm not.
4 A. I--1believe so. I -- yeah. 4 Q. Have you worked at all since you left Boeing?
s Q. Well - E A. Thave not.
¢ A. Idon't remember specifically. 8 Q. Have you made any attempts to find other
? Q. -~ well, you traveled here to attend your ? employment?
8 deposition -- 8 A. Thave,
¢ A. Right. ® Q. And what -- what have you done?
1 Q. ~- last -~ last week, correct? e A. Se the first five years after my constructive
i A, Well, T've been here three weeks. But, yeah, i discharge, I really wasn't able to. 1just wasn't in
12 Q. Okay. 2 the mental capacity. After that time --
i3 A. Tbelieve it was Thursday. I'm just -- 13 Q. Let -~ let me stop you there. 'm sorry.
B Q. Okay. 14 A. I'm sorry.
13 A. I'mnotarguing. I'm just -~ 15 Q. But you said, for the first five years after
18 Q. Okay. 1€ you teft Boeing, you were not mentally capable of
v A. - trying to clarify. 17 working?
18 Q. Do you know why it was canceled? e A. Right, because the anxiety and panic --
12 A. Thave an idea, but not legally. I mean, I 12 Q. Okay.
20 don't reaily know. 20 A, --attacks and that --
2t Q. What was the idea? What's the idea you 21 Q. But--
22 have? 22 A. -~ type of thing.
23 A. That we had received a lot more forms and we 23 Q. -- but you saw no physicians to be treated
24 hadn't had a chance to review them -- 24 for that, correct?
2s Q. Okay. 23 A, That's correct.
Page 384 Page 385
! Q. Okay. N And 1 got to thinking, how am I going to do this? Sol
z A. Yeah. 2 started, kind of, working towards opening my own
* Q. Allright. You can-- 3 business, so I didn't have to report to anybody. I'd
* A. Tried to handled it on my own. 4 be my own boss. And I'm still working towards that
s Q. Uh-huh. s today. I'm getting real close to starting my own
¢ A. But - but after 1, kind of, got things & business.
? squared away, I decided it was time to go back (o work. 7 Q. And -~ and what is that going to be?
g And -- and T went to — it's called A Million Air. And g A, It's going to be a handyman, auto, little bit
s it's two different words. And what they do is, they s of everything, you know, small construction, working --
e work on millionaires' airplanes and service them and i Q. Okay.
1 maintenance and that type of thing. i A. - on cars, that type of thing,
1z Q. Okay. 12 Q. Your counsel hasn't produced any applications
B A. So I went up there, picked up an application 3 for employment that -- that you have submitted to
14 and took it home to fill out. And ! was filling it B anyone. So are you -- is your testimony that you don't
s out, just thinking about having to report to somebody 18 have any applications?
6 in that fype of structure. I just broke out in an 16 A. Well, right. Like I say, when I was «
7 anxiety attack. So I threw that away. And then, I Q. You--your -
18 probably a month or so later, we have a place called 8 A, --1threw them away.
13 Union Cass - or Union Rails -- right there in i Q. --so you're saying you tried twice and you
20 Alexandria, that produces raflroad cars. So I thought 20 threw them away?
. I'd go down there and try to apply for some type of 2t A, Right,
2 mspection job or something, because that's what I'm -- 22 Q. Okay.
23 my background is. And, again, I took it home, tried to B A. That's correct,
24 fill it out and just -- T -- 1 just -- the anxiety and 2 Q. Soyou haven't applied for any jobs since you
2 stuff -- 1 just couldn't do it, 50 I threw it away. s left Boeing, correct?
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¢ production that were painted red, that had come out of N if a mechanic screws up a part, scrap it and go get
E the scrap bin. 2 another one. Excuse me. So by doing that, they really
3 Q. So you -~ your testimony is that people would ? created a ot of extra — a lot of parts came into MRSA
4 come into the cage, take parts, take it out to the : to be scrapped. And then they'd go to get another one,
s airplane? s and they wouldn't have a part. And they wouldn't be
6 A. Right. ¢ able to get one for who knows how long. So then they'd
? Q. And put it on planes? ? come hack in and take it out of the scrap bin.
& A, They were out on the production floor. 1 8 Q. Were there parls that were too large to fit
9 couldn't tell you how many ended up on airplanes. I ®  inthecage--
b just know that we found an awful lot out there. e A. Oh, yes.
1 Q. Well, what else they would be doing taking 1 Q. -~ that were nonconforming?
12 the parts out and putting them on the production line, 12 A, There was.
- if they weren't going to put them on a plane? 1 Q. Like what?
b A. Right. Right. 4 A. 1know we had two -- two 47 sections, 48
s Q. Isthat - 5 sections that had been lost. We had stringers. We had
L8 A, That's the only -~ that's the only reason | 8 strap joins. I forget what they're called, but some --
1 could think of. v some pretty majors ones. You know, a lot of them were
18 Q. Was there -- was there a shortage of parts 18 minor. But a lot -- there was a Jot of major ones out
1e that would be requiring mechanics to try to take an ¥ there.
20 alternate route and use scrap parts? #e Q. You say there was a 47 or 48 section that was
2 A. Yeah., We were having a lot of struggles with 2 ost?
# our suppliers keeping up. It was hard to get parts in. = A. Two of them.
# They were behind schedule. And part of that is = Q. What do you mean they were lost?
4 because -- I believe it was 2016, first part of 2016 - 24 A. The paperwork — trying to find the
25 leadership on the production floor gave direction that, 23 paperwork. Nobody knew where they went. Nobedy could
Page 20 Page 21
! find them. My understanding is, they weren't anywhere ! it went, right. So -~
2 to be found. 2 Q. What if there is no paperwork?
3 Q. How do you lose a 47 or 48 section? ? A. Well, and that's what we ran into was, there
4 A. That's a good question. That's - that's 4 was no - the paperwork came 10 a dead end. So we
? what I coulds't understand. s didn't know where they were.
8 Q. Were they tagped? & And -~ and when I say "we," I mean Boeing,
? A. Yeah, they were, per -- yeah. The process 7 Because these were all done in the other buildings
¢ says put a hang -- a red tag on it. So T didn't 8 before I had any controf over them.
L] ]

19
11
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i3
i4
5
1la
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18
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20

21

23
24

25

actually verify them because, obviously, I didn't see
them. But if the process was followed, then, yeah,
they should have been tagged.

Q. Do you believe those -- there - that there
are two 47 or 48 sections that's been -- that were
nonconforming, that were installed on an aircraft?

A. Ihave noidea. Imean, that's -- that would
be a theory.

Q. Well, where else would they go?

A, Well, i -- it's possible that they may have
gotten scrapped out and sent fo a college or something
like that for use. Idon't know. Fm just -~

Q. How would -

A. --theorizing.

Q. -~ how would Boeing be able to trace that?

A. So, again, you'd have to follow the paperwork
and see who released it, how it was released, and where

Q. Do you know how a mechanic would document,
for instance, one of these fuselage sections being used
on & plane, that -- that was nonconforming?

A. As far as [ know, there wouldn't be a
documentation because, as far as the mechanics are
concerned, they get the parts. They put them together,
They -- they don't really check to see if it’s fost or
nonconforming. They just get the part and put it on.
And that's why it's so important to have the paperwork,
show where the part went.

Q. What are stringers?

A. Sostringers are inside structure. And -~
and I said "stringers," but I, kind of, misspoke.,
Because a 787, they're all embedded. That was going
back fo my 747 days. Put -- but it's structural
components and — and that type of thing, like bathtub
fittings that hold on the wings and that type of thing,
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Page 38 Page 39
t processes. We're - we're building airplanes. And I . ). How is that funny?
2 sat there a minute, waiting on his manager to stand up 2 A. T--1couldn't tell you. Ididn't laugh.
2 and say something. And he don't. So I tock it upon 2 Q. Who was the highest level employee in that
4 myself to stand up and say, Look -~ you know, and [ 4 room, if you can remember?
s said -- just like I had been trained, I said, The s A. Thelr first line manager.
& paperwork is just as important as the aircraft. You s Q. Do you know who that was?
? know, what - if the paperwork's not right, it's just 7 A. Tdon't. It's-- like | say, there was about
g like the structure is not right. You know, either 8 30 people in there. It was a manufacturing group. And
¢ case, it's going to cause the plane not to be able to ¢ this was years ago.
o fly. [was trying to put emphasis on how important the 1o Q. Do you remember about what vear that was?
e build record was and how important it was to follow B A. It was back when we were -- they were really
12 procedures. And when [ said the paperwork was just as 12 pushing EI, so I'd have to say somewhere around '13 --
B3 important as the hardware, pretty much the whole room B3 2013ish, maybe '14.
4 started laughing at me and said, Yeah, that's not true. H Q. And what's the EI?
i Q. The whole room started laughing at you? i A. Employee involvement team.
16 A. Yeah. Yeah. They were alt mechanics. I had 6 Q. What's the purpose of that?
17 one inspector off my team that was there. And they're 7 A.  So the purpose of the El team is to gather
e the ones that invited me to this EI team, So it was 18 people together. Typically, it's cross-functional. So
e all manufacturing except for myself and an inspector. i you'll have manufacturing in there. You'll have
2¢ Q. What -- what would be funny about not 2e quality in there. You'll have engineering n there.
2t following process? 2t You'll have planning. Typically, is -~ that's what the
22 A. T'm assuming they were laughing because I e team is made of. But this particular team was made up
2 said the paperwork was just as important as the 23 of alf manufacturing, And I had one inspector that was
B hardware. And they thought that was funny for some i attending, trying to help them out and push them on the
s reason. I'm not sure. 25 right way. So, in this particular case, it was mostly
Page 40 Page 41
: manufacturing, ! Q. Because -- because the FAA has to ultimately
2 And the problem -- the purpose of it is to 2 approve - I'm sorry. The FAA ultimately approves the
2 come together, figure out ways to improve the 3 BPIs, right?
i processes, figure out ways to eliminate waste and -- 4 A. That's correct.
s and continuous quality improvement. You know, that's s Q. And Boeing's quality -~
s what it's all about, is continuous quality improvement. ¢ A. That's correct.
! And that's what they were focused on, was, How can we 7 Q. —QMS system?
8 stilt get the work done and still improve the process 8 A, That's correct. And it goes back to the
3 9

fo try to eliminate waste? And that's -- that's the
whole premise around the EI team, 1 guess. And, like I
say, they came up with ways to make it a shorter
process.

Q. Would that be by eliminating guality
inspections?

A. So, in that particular case, they were - I
forget exactly what they were talking about. But they
were talking about doing different things. And -- and,
as they were talking, I knew they were violating
processes. And that's why I raised those. 1 was like,
you know, These sound good, as long as they can get
approved. Because, regardless of what idea you come up
with or -~ or what improvements you make, until the
BPIs, the pros -- or the procedures are changed, it's
not approved. You know, until it's documented in
the -- in the QMS, it's not approved. 1 don't care -

initial obtaining the production certificate, right,
is -- is ~- the requirement is, they develop a quality
management system. You know, like I say, Say as you
do; do as you szy. They document this. And all that
goes to the FAA for their approval, So once it's
approved, it's locked in. So you can't deviate from
that uniess you go get approval and it's actually put
in the BPIs that that process is changed and this is
the new way to do things, right. So, yeah, if's got to
be approved and it's got to be in the documents before
you can actually start working to it.

Q. And how widespread is this issue of folks not
following BPIs and procedures?

A. 'Well, like I say, 1 ran --
bject to the form.
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.
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: shims, and document those in the SOIs prior (o ' But when you just start eliminating inspections and --
? installing them. And it was very - a lot of 2 and, you know, telling -- saying that we're -- don't
2 mspection requirements, inspection points to verify 3 have time to follow procedures, we're just going to
1 that the gaps and the shims and alt of that were -- i build airplanes, you know, that -- that really swings
s were recorded properly. And so | can tell you that : the needle in the wrong direction.
8 those were there then. And I noticed the response 6 Q. That, to me, sounds ike that Boeing South
? was -- when this issue came up — was that engineering 7 Carolina was putting profits and production over
8 didn’t call out the measurement of the shims and the 8 quality and safety.
¢ fillers. And I'm like, Well, exactly right. Because # B Obicct o form.
10 that was a quality management system requirement. And £
i it was, more than likely, eliminated. But I can't i Q. Daes it to you?
12 verify for sure. But based on other issues, you -- you i A. Solwould totally agree with that, again,
33 can only surmise that, yeah, those were eliminated, as ” based on the fact that they're eliminating inspections.
B well. “ And if -- and if you fook back at the MFPP process, you
i Q. What would be the point in eliminating s know, that's basically the same thing they were wanting
16 quality inspections? 16 fo do with that is, have the mechanics buy off their
& A. To speed up production, you know. Because, = own work. And ! know that that was getting drug out
e like [ say, for the fast 15, 20 years, Boeing has 18 and not getting approved as quick as they wanted. Seo,
19 looked at quality as nonvalue added and -- and overhead 8 in my mind, I'm thinking they just went and eliminated
0 and basically a waste. So they've been working on 28 the inspection points rather than waiting on MFPP
21 things. it process to kick in, right. Se — so by eliminating
= And that goes back to the process 22 those inspection points, you're essentially leaving it
23 improvements and the EI teams, which that was a good 23 up to the mechanic to buy off their own work.
2 approach, you know, Get your teams together and work 2 Q. Would Boeing be misrepresenting itself if it
s on ways to improve and - and - and help reduce waste. 8 made statements such as, Safety and quality are our top
Page 56 Page b7
t priority? L there,
2 A, Absolutely. Based on what I've seen in z A. Furthermore, intentionally falsifying an
3 Charleston, I'd say just the opposite. They're « 3 aircraft build record is a violation of 148 CFR 43.12,
4 they're trying to push quatity out and have 4 maintenance records, falsification, reproduction or
s manufacturing take it ali over. s alteration, In addition, falsifying or concealing
s Q. Right Imean, how -- if quatity and safety N material fact or making material false writing is in
K are your top priorty, how -- how could you be i violation of 18 U.8.C. 38.
@ eliminating quality and quatity inspections? & Q. If you'd take a look at Footnote 2, which is
® A. Right. ¢ 18U.S.C. 38.
1o Q. Correct? 20 A. Yes.
n A. Yes, absolutely, 1 Q. Justreview it.
B e 2 A O,
12 B onye B Q. It goes on to the next page.
14 _Actuaﬂy, do you mind if we B A. Okay.
» do? 18 Q. T'mnot asking a legal opinion here. But

— Okay. Well, we can, yeah.

I'm sorry. Thank you,

c
B Offtherecord, [215.

A brief recess was taken.)
Back on the record, 12:25.

Q. Mr. Bamett, could you take a took at the
Amended Complaint and Footote 27

A. Okay.

Q. Ifyou could read the last sentence on page 4

WM R R s e
B W N R @ W® o@m W oa

¥
w

after reading 18 U.S.C. 38, what -- what's your
interpretation of that?

A. So what I'm really zeroing in on is
faisifying and -- and fraudulent representation, false
writings, that type of thing. So, again, the quality
management sysfem is set up to where everything that's
done is supposed to be documented and -- to the
airplane is supposed to be documented and part of the
build records. So, as an example, if you don't write
an NCR when you should, and you just go by other

15 (Pages 54 to 57)
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Page 78 Page 79
1 She said, Hey, Mr. Walking BPI, you know, 1 got a t adverse action is taken against you related to a safety
2 process here. What do I do? 2 violation, which I think is very narow. But -~ but
3 You know, 've -- manufacturing managers came 3 you're only given 90 days from the time of that action
4 tome. You know, it was like, Hey, I know you really 4 taking place. But the law also says that you have to
3 know your stuff. This is the situation. What should 5 have - atlow your employer time to work it or address
8 we do? And 1'd run them through the process, you know. 5 it before you can go to AIR21, And at Boeing, |
7 My peers, you know, other quality managers, we were ? know - I don't know very many -- so at Boeing, the
K constantly talking and working together. And -- and B only way to do that is to notify HR ethics. Andl--
¢ got the impression that they were all looking to me for # and I can't say there are foo many HR cthics compilaints
10 guidance and help and navigating through the processes 0 that was closed out in less than six or eight months.
i and the right way to handle it. So, yeah, I'd say it 1 So, automatically, if you go to HR with an issue, and
22 was probably pretty widespread that T was - I was iz they take eight months {o investigate it and they come
13 viewed as a subject matter expert in the -- in the 13 back and tell, no, you're wrong, and then you want to
B ared. 14 go file an AIR21 complaint, you missed your 90-day
15 Q. Let me take a look at the complaint here. 3 window, It's too late. So ! think the system is set
18 At the time you were there, did Boeing ever 16 up and J -~ and - and within Boeing, I think there's
kbl give employees training on ATR21? 1 just a lot that falls through the cracks just because
18 A. No. I'dnever heard of AIR21 untif after I 18 the way the laws work.
1e left there. No, I didn't know anything about it. 19 Q. Did people at Boeing openly encourage
20 Q. Do you believe an aviation manufacturer ze employees to speak up and raise safety or quality
2 should train employees about AIR217 i concerns?
22 A. 1 would say absohstely. Because [ know other 2z A, So they would tell you that verbally. Oh,
23 issues have come up and -- and other people have tried 23 yeah, speak up. Raise your hand, We take it
21 to raise issues. And -- and one of the things with 24 seriously. But then, when you actually do it is when
23 AIR2! is, you're limited to 90 days from the time an 23 you start getting actions that, you know, you're a
Page 80 Page 81
i troublemaker or you're - you know, you're - you're t that's — it hurts.
2 Just trying to hold up production. You know, I was 2 Q. So employees -- 50 it creates an environment
3 {old - I can't tell you how many times -~ Barnett's 3 where employees are fearful to speak up, right?
! just holding up production. You know, it's like -- 4 A. Absolutely. Yes.
: Q. Was it just you or other people, too? s Q. Were you fearful to speak up, at times?
5 A. Well, the ones | heard was me. But I'm sure 8 A, No. I was not because of the -- the
’ there was other people, too. 1 -- I don't know. I 7 experience and the knowledge 1 had. But I can tell
8 can't be sure about that. But -~ but it -- like I say, 8 you, I've talked to a lot of QTs and a lof of other
@ El

[ N O - T T T R SR W
L N B - L S T =Y

it was wide -- it -- if's the environment. I{'s --
it's -~ the whole environment there is set up that way.

Q. I canrepresent to you now that Boeing has an
internal -- they call it Speak Up -- system for
employees to raise concerns intemally, Did they -
did Boeing South Carolina have a system like that in
place when were you there?

A, So we actually implemented what's called,
Raise Your Hand. You know, see an issue, raise your
hand. And, again, they pitched it and they talked it.
But they didn't practice it, you know. And that's the
breakdown, is, you know, they can tel! you all day
long, Raise your hand. But then, when you do raise
your hand and you receive some type of retaliation or
some fype of, you know, disciplinary action or lower PM
score -- or any of that adds into it, to where, okay,
so ['ll never raise my hand again, you know. Because

qualily managers. And they told me -- flat out told
me, you know, that, We're, kind of, watching you to see
what happens. Because we're afraid to speak up.
And also, during that time, I had countless

QTs from other -- quality technicians -- from other
areas approaching me and bringing issues. And I'd say,
How come you don't take it to your manager? Well, they
won't do anything about it. They don't know the
processes, you know. So it's just the whole picture,
youknow. You can't - you can't just pinpoint one
thing. It's the whole environment. It's just — for
every action, there's a reaction. And the reactions
there were negative and...

Q. Well, you tesfified yesterday along the lines
that you were fearful to raise the issue in 2016
related to the job blackdisting complaint. Do you re-
-- recall that?

21 {Pages 78 to 81)
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! to make me look bad. ' Q. We're going to mark that as Plaintiff's
z Q. You would consider that retaliation, correct? 2 Exhibit 4.
3 A. Twould, and hostile and -- 3 (PlaintifPs Exhibit No. 4 marked for
4 Q. Right. 4 identification.)
s A. --unappropriate behavior of a manager. s
8 Q. Would you read - let's see. What do you ¢ Q. Have you had a chance to look -- flip through
? mean he -- you said he would try to make you look bad. 7 those?
8 In what way? 8 A. Skim through it, yes.
s A, Well, again, this is -- so, in this case, my s Q. And you've seen all those documents before,
1o team didn't get their work done. And he blamed me for e correct?
M it, even though he's the one that had reassigned them. B A. Thave. They all look real familiar, yes,
2 So I'm being blamed for his actions. And, you know, 12 Q. Those are documents we produced to Boeing,
i3 that's -~ that's making me look bad. 2 right?
4 Q. Right. Right. If you could read paragraph 3 1 A. Yep, that's correct.
2 of Interrogatory Number 3. 19 Q. And what are those documents, in -~ in
16 A. Complainant was pushed to work in the gray 18 general?
17 areas of processes, procedures and federal regutations. v A. So, again, these are -- are documents where
18 Examples given, 267 684, 865, 13- -- e we're either being told 1o vi- - to work outside
18 Q. That's -- 18 procedures or leadership's making a decision to work
2 A, Oh,'m-- 20 outside of procedures and -- and -- and violate FAA
2 Q. - that's aff right. We'll - e requirements. I mean, they're - they're all pretty
= A, Okay. 22 much the same, except for the PMs.
23 Q. --I'm going to give you an exhibit that has 23 Q. So those are alt evidence to support that you
2 every one of those Bates-stamped pages in it. 2a were being pushed fo work in the gray areas of process,
3 A. Okay. 22 procedures and federal regulations?
Page 116 Page 117
. A. That's correct, yes. : {Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 5 marked for
z Q. Allright. 2 identification.
3 A. Except for the PMs, Well, even some of the 3
4 PMs, but, yeah. Yesh, I'd say all of them do. 4 Q. And we'll mark that PlaintifPs Exhibit 5.
5 Q. Would you consider -~ I think we've covered s A, Okay.
& this, but would you consider that to be retaliatory? s Q. There's also some Bates stamps that were in
7 h Object to form. " Plaintiff's Exhibit 4.
B : A Okay.
3 A, Well, so - i Q. [think Number 2400 and 2401 and 3386.
1o Q. Or-- 10 A. Yes. 21 --
1 A. -~ being pushed to work outside the S Q. Number 2400, 2401 and 3386.
12 procedures, 1 think, is hostility and -~ 12 A. 401,
12 Q. Right, 13 Q. Letme see if [ can help you. Idon't want

A. -~ and not doing it, the retaliation comes
because -- because I refused to work outside of
procedures.

Q. Could you read number 6 of Interrogatory 37

A. Complainant was directed not to document
quality concerns and other issues. Do you want me to
read off the numbers?

Q. No. There are some Bates stamp numbers after
it, right?

A, Right. Yeah. You want me to read those?

Q. No. I'm going to hand you a packet that has
each of those numbers.

to get these mixed up here.

What document are you on?
Has it been marked?
_Piaintiﬁ’s 5, which is --
B This one?
B v
o

A Okay.
Q. Could you generally -- well, you've seen
these documents, correct?

A Yes.

30 {Pages 114 to 117)
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i Q. And, again, these are documents we've ¢ — -- which is Exhibit 5 -- within l
2 produced to Boeing, correct? 2 Exhibit 5. :
3 A. That's correct. : - All right. :
4 Q. And what -- generally, what are these !
s documents? s Q. If you'd take a look at Interrogatory Answer I
6 A. So these are various documents talking about s Numnber -- or to Interrogatory Number 3, paragraph 7.
7 process vielations and CAs, CAs not being worked, ? Can you read that?
¢ talking about me using email to discuss issues, and ® A. Complainant was penalized on his PM for being
g more missing parts from MRSA that disappeared, that [ ¢ too knowledgeable on processes and procedures, 3064.
1o was notifying them about. Several nonconforming parts 10 Q. That was in -
B that disappeared, that -- oh, and then we've got one " Exhibit 5.
2 talking about the repair station, [ believe. Yes, 12
= repair station. So severa different pro- -- process 12 A, Here 1t is, right here, Exhibit 5.
u violations and issues that I was bringing up, parts " Q. Right. We've -- you testified about this
13 disappearing, process and procedures being violated, s yesterday?
e repairs station issues. e A, Tdid.
v Q. Would you consider being directed to not 17 Q. Would you consider being penalized on your PM
8 document quality concerns a hostile work environment? e for being too knowledgeable on processes and procedures
e A. Twould, because as - as ajob - as a 19 to be retalatory?
2¢ quality manager, that's my job. That's one -- one of 0 A. Iconsider it retaliatory, hostile. Because,
21 the things F'm supposed to be doing. And be told not 2 again, that's my job, is to kaow what I'm doing. Soto
= to do it, I mean, it's basically telling e not to do 22 tefl me I'm too knowledgeable, 1 mean, that's
23 my job. 3 countesproductive and against my job. Yeah,
4 This is 6 ~ 2¢ absolutely, hostile, retaliatory, trying to force me
= Okay., 25 1ot 10 do my job correctly, alt of those, yeah,
Page 120 Page 121
t Q. Could you read -- take a look at b Off the record, 15:19.
2 Interrogatory Number 3 and read paragraph 8. 2 nef recess was taken.)
3 A. Complainant was penalized on his PM for not 3 ack on the record, 15:36.
. working the gray areas of Boeing's processes and :
s procedures and federal regulations, 2400, 2401, 3064 5 Q. Aliright. Let's see. Mr. Barnett, could
¢ and 3720. 6 you read paragraph 9 of Interrogatory 3.
7 Q. So all those prior Bates stamps have already 7 A. Complainant was penalized on his PM for
& been entered except 3720. F1l mark that as g putting quality concems in writing, 2401, 2409.
? Plaintiff's Exhibit 6. ¢ Q. SoI'm going to mark 2409 as Plaintiff's
e (Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 6 marked for 1o Exhibit 7. 2401 has already been admitted,
1 identification.) 1 A. Yep, under Exhibit 4.

12
13
14
13
1&
17
18
i8
Z0
21
22
23

24

Q. Just for the record, Bates stamp 2400 and
2401 are in Plaintiff's Exhibit 5. And 3064 was just
marked as 6.
A. That's 3720.
Q. Oh, 3064 — somry.
A. IsinS.
Q. TW's getting -- sorry.
It's in Exhibit 4.
Exhibit 4.
What in -- what's Exhibit

47
_ So let's take a break. Take --

take a minute off the record.

Okay. Can - so this is 77
Yes,
(Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. 7 marked for
identification.)

Q. Did you have a chance to read 24097

A. Thereitis. Yes, okay.

Q. And, again, this is a document that you've
seen before and you've -- we've produced to Boeing,
cotrect?

A. Cormrect. Yes.

Q. And that document, atong with Document 2401,
support your complaint that you were pen- -- penalized
on your PM for putting quality concerns in writing?

31 (Pages 118 to 121)
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Aviation Safety 2200 South 216'" Street

U.S. Depariment Des Moines, WA 98198-6547
of Transportation

Federal Aviation
Administration

May 18, 2021

File Number: EIR2021NM420001

The Boeing Company
Vice President of Commercial Airplanes Quality

P.O. Box 3707, MC 687-05
Seattle, WA 98124-2207

Dear N

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 1s investigating Verification Optimization,
Process Surveillance, Manufacturing Assurance and Process Surveillance (MAPS), and
Functional Test Surveillance to ensure compliance with Title 14 of the Code of 'ederal

Regulations (14 CFR) and your FAA approved quality system.
REQUIREMENTS:

Title 14 CFR § 21.146 Responsibility of holder, states in part, “The holder of a
production certificate must...

(b) Maintain the quality system in compliance with the data and procedures approved for
the production certificate;

(¢) Ensure that each completed product or article for which a production certificate has
been issued, presented for airworthiness certification or approval conforms to its
approved design and is in a condition for safe operation.”

(Supports all allegations)

Boeing Quality Manual (BQM), Revision H, dated April 21, 2020, General, states in
part, “[Boeing Commercial Aircraft] BCA’s primary business is the design, production,
maintenance, and support of Commercial Transport Category Aircraft certified to the
FAA requirement 14 CFR part 21.”

(Supports all allegations)
































